
 

BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 
Please note that this meeting will be livestreamed via www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk, please speak to a  
Governance Officer before the meeting should you not wish to consent to being included in this recording. 

 
 
 

GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

 
DATE: Thursday, 14th November, 2019 

 
TIME: 3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Mechanics Institute, John Tocher Room - 103 Princess Street, Manchester M1 

6DD 
 

 
AGENDA 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

  
 

 

2.   CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

iOPS  update – ACC Chris Sykes, GMP   
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

To receive declarations of interest in any item for discussion at 
the meeting. A blank form for declaring interests has been 
circulated with the agenda; please ensure that this is returned to 
the Governance & Scrutiny Officer at the start of the meeting. 

 

1 - 4 

4.   MINUTES 
 

To consider the approval of the minute of the meetings held on 23 
September 2019   
 

5 - 10 

5.   PERFORMANCE OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK - TO FOLLOW 
 

Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief 
Executive for Police and Crime 
 

 

6.   POLICE PRECEPT SETTING PROCESS 
 

Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for 
Police and Crime  
 

11 - 16 

Public Document

http://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/


2 
 

7.   STANDING TOGETHER PLAN FOCUS - PRIORITY  2 - TO FOLLOW 
 

Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for 
Policing and Crime   
 

 

8.   DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE DEPUTY MAYOR 
 

Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for 
Policing and Crime   
 

17 - 20 

9.   GM POLICE AND CRIME PLAN - FORWARD LOOK 2019/20 
 

Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council and Lead 
Chief Executive for Police and Crime   
 

21 - 30 

10.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

Tuesday 28 January 2020 
Tuesday 24 March 2020   
 

 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

For copies of papers and further information on this meeting please refer to the website 
www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk.  Alternatively, contact the following 

Governance & Scrutiny Officer: Steve Annette steve.annette@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 
 
 

This agenda was issued on 6 November 2019 behalf of Eamonn Boylan, Secretary to the  
Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford Street, 

Manchester M1 6EU 
 



 1 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL – 14 NOVEMBER 2019 
 
Declaration of Councillors’ Interests in Items Appearing on the Agenda 
 
NAME:  ______________________________ 
 
DATE: _______________________________ 
 

Minute Item No. / Agenda Item No. Nature of Interest Type of Interest 
 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

  Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

  Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
Please see overleaf for a quick guide to declaring interests at meetings. 

  

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3



 2 

QUICK GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

This is a summary of the rules around declaring interests at meetings. It does not replace the Member’s Code of Conduct, the full description can be found 
in the GMCA’s constitution Part 7A.  

Your personal interests must be registered on the GMCA’s Annual Register within 28 days of your appointment onto a GMCA committee and any changes to 
these interests must notified within 28 days. Personal interests that should be on the register include: 

 Bodies to which you have been appointed by the GMCA 

 Your membership of bodies exercising functions of a public nature, including charities, societies, political parties or trade unions. 

You are also legally bound to disclose the following information called DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS which includes: 

 You, and your partner’s business interests (eg employment, trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which you are associated) 

 You and your partner’s wider financial interests (eg trust funds, investments, and assets including land and property).  

 Any sponsorship you receive. 

FAILURE TO DISCLOSE THIS INFORMATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE 

STEP ONE: ESTABLISH WHETHER YOU HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS OF THE AGENDA 

If the answer to that question is ‘No’ – then that is the end of the matter. If the answer is ‘Yes’ or Very Likely’ then you must go on to consider if that 
personal interest can be construed as being a prejudicial interest.  

STEP TWO: DETERMINING IF YOUR INTEREST PREJUDICIAL? 
A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest: 

 where the well being, or financial position of you, your partner, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association (people who 

are more than just an acquaintance) are likely to be affected by the business of the meeting more than it would affect most people in the area.  

 the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to 

prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

FOR A NON PREJUDICIAL INTEREST  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you 

FOR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you 

P
age 2



 3 

have an interest 

 Inform the meeting that you have a personal interest and the nature of 

the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of interest form 

TO NOTE:  

 You may remain in the room and speak and vote on the matter  

 If your interest relates to a body to which the GMCA has appointed you 

to you only have to inform the meeting of that interest if you speak on 

the matter. 

have a prejudicial interest (before or during the meeting) 

 Inform the meeting that you have a prejudicial interest and the nature of 

the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of interest form 

 Leave the meeting while that item of business is discussed 

 Make sure the interest is recorded on your annual register of interests 

form if it relates to you or your partner’s business or financial affairs. If it 

is not on the Register update it within 28 days of the interest becoming 

apparent.  

YOU MUST NOT: 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you 

become aware of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting 

participate further in any discussion of the business,  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL, HELD ON 

MONDAY 23 SEPTEMBER 2019 AT CHURCHGATE HOUSE, MANCHESTER 

 

PRESENT: 

Councillor Nadim Muslim  Bolton Council 

Councillor Nigel Murphy   Manchester City Council – (In the Chair)  

Councillor Steve Williams  Oldham Council 

Councillor Janet Emsley  Rochdale Council    

Councillor David Lancaster  Salford City Council 

Councillor Kevin Anderson  Wigan Council 

Councillor Amanda Peers  Stockport  

Councillor Mike Freeman  Trafford Council 

Angela Lawrence MBE  Independent Member 

Majid Hussain    Independent Member 

ALSO PRESENT: 

GM Deputy Mayor   Baroness Hughes 

Councillor Paula Boshell  Salford City Council       

OFFICERS: 

Richard Paver GMCA Treasurer   

Jeanette Staley Salford City Council & GM Police and & Crime Policy 
Lead  

Clare Monaghan   Director Policing, Crime and Fire, GMCA 

Gwynne Williams   Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA    

Steve Annette    GMCA Governance and Scrutiny  
 
PCP/19/24  APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence was received and noted from Councillor Paula Boshell, Salford City 
Council, Councillor Kevin Anderson, Wigan Council, Carolyn Wilkins, Lead GM Chief Executive 
for Police and Crime and Majid Hussain, Independent Member.            
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

PCP/19/25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Members were asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in relation to any of 
the items appearing on the agenda for the present meeting. There were no such declarations 
made.  
PCP/19/26 MINUTES OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL HELD ON 2 JULY, 2019 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Police and Crime Panel held on 2 July 2019 were 
submitted.    
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Police and Crime Panel held on 2 July 2019, be 
approved as a correct record.  

PCP/19/27         IS TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME (IOPS) 
 

The Chair indicated that he had agreed to this item being presented and considered as urgent 

business at this meeting.  The Chief Constable’s report had been circulated in advance to members. 

The Deputy Mayor in opening discussion on the report reminded members of the scale of the project 

and highlighted that  the range of problems that had been encountered could not have been 

anticipated, but that once issues had been identified those involved in the implentation of the project 

had worked very hard in terms of listening to what was happening in districts, and especially listening 

to officers in the field, in order  to develop and implement work-arounds to ensure that the system 

was made to operate in the way that it was envisaged.   She highlighted also that in common with 

any major transfer programme there would be a whole raft of enhancements to the software over 

time but the importance at this initial stage was the estabishment of an operating platform in which 

there was widespread trust. 

The Chief Constable presented his report, he welcomed the continued political support for the 

project which was simultaneously exciting and challenging.   He reminded the Panel that the previous 

operating system had been on the brink of catastrophic failure and that the nature of policing had 

changed significantly during the life of that system and there was a pressing need to properly reflect 

the greater reliance being placed on technology, and how sensitive data is used and stored safely.  

The new operating system comprised seven projects of  which IOPS was just one element, and there 

had been teething problems and delays to the implementation schedule, but most of these related 

to the need for a better understanding of the sytem and its operation rather than any inadequacy in 

the system itself.   He welcomed the support and flexibility of partners in the Crown Prosecution 

Service and the Courts and action taken by the Force to maintain criminal justice service levels, and 

reassured members that the GMP and CPS had no knowledge of any cases being dropped as a direct 

result of IOPS related performance. 

Members thanked the Chief Constable for his candid report.   Concerns were raised in relation to (a) 

the extent to which officers had access to information when attending incidents where vulnerable 

peole were involved (b) assurances were sought in respect of ‘warning markers’ especially in relation 

to responses to domestic violence (c) the importance of this Panel having details of the future 

programme timetable, including programme enhancememnts, and (d) what the key ‘lessons learned’ 

were from the exercise. 

Page 6



 

3 
 

The Chief Constable reminded members that the system fully reflected the new national standards 

for the use of data in policing and that he was confident that the Force would be able to meet  those 

standards in full.   He re-assured members that all the critical operational data had been moved over 

to the new system so that officers continued to have access to all the information or ‘markers’ that 

they had previously, and that the legacy system was still operating and could be interrogated.  He 

recognised the issues raised about vulnerble people  but stressed the importance  that key ‘markers’ 

were person focussed rather than address focussed and the new system was built around this.   In 

terms of the ‘lessons learned’ he considered that they would be about the importance of 

communication wth staff and with partners, to recognise the over-willingness on the part of some to 

blame everything that went wrong on IOPS, and some misinformed and unhelpful reporting. 

RESOLVED/- 

1. To thank the Chief Constable for a frank and detailed report and to recognise the hard work 

that has been invested in the implementation of the new system. 

 

2. To agree that in the interest of effective scrutiny there will be a progress update on the 

agenda for each future meeting of the Panel 

   
PCP19/28  APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR FOR 2019/2020 
 
The GMCA Police and Crime Policy Lead sought nominations for the appointment of a 
Deputy Chair to the Police and Crime Panel for 2019/20.  
 
Councillor Janet Emsley was nominated for appointment as Deputy Chair.  
There being no other nominations made and Councillor Emsley having indicted her 
willingness to accept the office, and upon a Motion being then so made and seconded, and 
voted upon, it was -  
 
RESOLVED/-  
 
1.) To agree to amend the Panel’s Rules of Procedure to provide for the appointment of a 
Deputy Chair to the GM Police and Crime Panel  
 
2.)  That Councillor Janet Emsley be appointed as Deputy Chair of the Police and Crime Panel 
for the 2019/2020 Municipal Year 
 
PCP/19/29  UPDATE ON 2019/20 PRECEPT INCREASE OF £9m 

Consideration was given to a report which provided members with an update on recruitment 

against the proposals in the police and crime precept report.   

The Deputy Mayor indicated that the report tracked progress in  relation to the recruitment 

of the 320 additional police officer posts funded by the  2019//20 precept and the challenges 

which this represented alongside ordinary recruitment activity to fill vacancies.  Some 720 

appointments fell to be made this year, including 170 neighbourhood police officers and the 

50 Force-wide team for flexible deployment and the Transport Team of 50 officers.   A 

detailed project plan had been put in place to manage the process effectively.   She referred 

Page 7



 

4 
 

also to the Government’s recent announcement about additional police recruitment, and 

that whilst the specific recruitment impact for Greater Manchester was not quantifiable at 

this stage it would clearly be a process that also required careful management 

Members voiced concerns at the potential impacts at district level and in call handling 

services in the event of experienced officers and staff securing promotions, and the Chief 

Constable offered reassurances that the process was being carefully and sensitively 

managed with those concerns in mind. The number of retirees from the Force was in fact 

slowing and this had reduced the number of ordinary vacancies falling to be filled this year, 

and by implication retained experienced officers and staff.  He went on to advise the Panel 

about the high quality of candidates keen to join the Force, including candidates who may 

not have considered a career in policing previously, but that challenges still existed in terms 

of attracting more women and candidates from ethnic minority backgrounds  

RESOLVED/- 
 
1.  To note the report.   
 
PCP/19/30  DEPUTY MAYOR DECISION NOTICES SINCE MARCH 2019  
 
Consideration was given to a report which highlighted decisions made by the Deputy  
Mayor in the period from March 2019.  
 
The Deputy Mayor agreed to provide specific information in relation to (a) Estate Strategy 
Data Centre (b) Development of Integrated Health and Justice, and (c) Perimeter Security  
Services.  
  
RESOLVED/- 
 
1.  To note the report.   
 
PCP/19/31  SERIOUS VIOLENCE PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 
Damian Dallimore, GMCA provided an update on the Serious Violence Programme.    
The report highlighted that the rise in serious violence had prompted the Government to 
introduce a Serious Violence Strategy that highlighted key areas of concern.  Officer were  
engaged with the Home Office to translate that Strategy with specific relevance to Greater  
Manchester priorities, and a number of pieces of work had been undertaken to draw 
statistical information and evidence together to give a better picture of key areas of local 
concern, work that had already provided positive insights and connections at community  
level.  It was important that the work was community led and had a longer term vision, and  
that resources were directed to a targeted policy through a Violence Reduction Unit. 
 
In discussion members commented that the issues in the report highlighted how our  
society and the mind-sets of individuals in  relation to acts of violence had changed, and  
that issues such as knife crime could only be successfully tackled in a community led way  
involving parents and schools .   Other members were anxious to see what the proposed 

Page 8



 

5 
 

community led approach would look like and how local foci would be reflected.  The  
Deputy Mayor said that the commitment to a community led approach had already been  
demonstrated in the significant proportion of the £8.1M grant from Government, that had 
been directed to the development of priorities at local level. 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1.  To note the value of an integrated, multi-agency approach to violence reduction, 
rooted in the tenets of public health and with clear evidence of a community-led approach 
to responding to these issues. 
 
2.   To provide local scrutiny and support in the delivery of the CPS- led serious violence 
action plans and their spending commitments. 
 
3. To confirm support for the Violence Reduction Unit as an important first step in 
investing in a community-led, public health approach to prevent violence. 
 
4. To receive further updates as required.    
 
PCP/19/32  STANDING TOGETHER – THEME 1    
 
The Deputy Mayor outlined the progress that was being made on key priorities and sought 
feedback from members of the format of the report and what information members might 
want to see in the future.   Members indicated that they were content with the reporting 
format. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report and the progress being made be noted. 
 
PCP/19/33   STANDING TOGETHER  
 
That consideration of the an update on the Standing Together Outcomes Framework  
be deferred to the next meeting     
 
PCP/19/34  GM POLICE AND CRIME PLAN – FORWARD LOOK 2018-20 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
To note the report.   
  
PCP/19/35  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Thursday 14 November 2019 
Tuesday 28 January 2020 
Tuesday 24 March 2020  

   

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

 
 

  
GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

 

 

Date:   14th November 2019 
 
Subject: POLICE PRECEPT SETTING PROCESS 

 
Report of:  GMCA TREASURER  
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To explain the statutory duties of the Police and Crime Panel in relation to the setting of the police 
precept.  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. Note that statutory duties of the Police and Crime Panel in relation to the setting of the 

police precept.  
 

2. Note the timetable for the setting of the 2020/21 police precept and give consideration as to 
whether an additional meeting is required in mid January. 

 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

 2 

 
 
 
 

1. Police and Crime Panels – Scrutiny of Precepts  
 
The process for the police and crime panel’s (PCP) scrutiny of the police and crime 
commissioner’s (PCC) proposed precept should be read alongside:  
 

 Schedule 5 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 (“the Act”)  

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents/enacted 

 Part 2 of the Police and Crime Panels (Precepts and Chief Constable Appointments) 
Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”)  
 

Hyperlinks to the document are provided however the salient points are described below along 
with a flow chart on page 5. 
 
Background  
 
Schedule 5 of the Act sets out the process for issuing a precept, including the panel’s role in 
reviewing the proposed precept, their power to veto the precept and the steps to be taken if they 
do veto the proposed precept.  
The Regulations provide greater detail to the Act, including time limits applicable to the stages of 
the process and the process for reviewing and issuing a revised precept.  
 
Schedule 5 requires:  
 

 the PCC to notify the panel of his/her proposed precept;  

 the panel to review the proposed precept;  

 the panel to make a report to the PCC on the proposed precept (this may include 
recommendations);  

 the panel’s report (if they veto the proposed precept) to include a statement that they have 
vetoed it;  

 a decision of veto to be agreed by two-thirds of the panel members;  

 the PCC to have regard to the report made by the panel (including any recommendations 
in the report);  

 the PCC to give the panel a response to their report (and any such recommendations);  

 the PCC to publish the response.  
 
It is for the panel to determine how a response to a report or recommendations is to be published.  
If there is no veto and the PCC has published his/her response to the panel’s report, the PCC 
may then issue the proposed precept - or a different precept (but only if in accordance with a 
recommendation in the panel’s report to do so).  
 
 
The Regulations require:  
 

 the PCC to notify the panel of his/her proposed precept by 1 February;  

 the panel to review and make a report to the PCC on the proposed precept (whether it 
vetoes the precept or not) by 8 February;  

 where the panel vetoes the precept, the PCC to have regard to and respond to the Panel’s 
report, and publish his/her response, including the revised precept, by 15 February;  

 the panel, on receipt of a response from the PCC notifying them of his/her revised precept, 
to review the revised precept and make a second report to the PCC by 22 February;  

 the PCC to have regard to and respond to the Panel’s second report and publish his/her 
response, by 1 March.  

Page 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2271/part/2/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2271/part/2/made


 

 3 

 
 
Panel’s report on the proposed precept  
If the panel fails to report to the PCC by 8 February the scrutiny process comes to an end, even 
if the panel have voted to veto the proposed precept, and the PCC may issue the proposed 
precept.  
 
PCC’s response to a veto  
Where the panel vetoes the proposed precept, the PCC must have regard to the report made by 
the panel, give the panel a response to the report and publish the response, by 15 February. In 
his/her response, the PCC must notify the panel of the revised precept that he intends to issue.  
 
Where the panel’s report indicates that they vetoed the precept because it was:  
 

 too high, the revised precept must be lower than the previously proposed precept.  

 too low, the revised precept must be higher than the previously proposed precept.  
 

 
 
Panel’s review of the revised precept  
On receipt of a response from the PCC notifying them of the revised precept proposal, the panel 
must review the revised precept proposal and make a second report to the PCC on the revised 
precept by 22 February. This report may:  
 

 indicate whether the panel accepts or rejects the revised precept (although rejection does 
not prevent the PCC from issuing the revised precept); and  

 make recommendations, including recommendations on the precept that should be 
issued.  

 
If the panel fails to make a second report to the PCC by 22 February, the PCC may issue the 
revised precept.  
 
Issuing the precept  
Excluding where the panel fails to report on the proposed precept by 8 February or make a 
second report on the revised precept by 22 February, the scrutiny process ends when the PCC 
gives the panel his/her response to their second report.  
The PCC may then:  
 

 issue the revised precept; or  

 issue a different precept, although:  
 they must not issue a precept that is higher than the revised precept if the revised 

precept was lowered following the panel’s initial report on the first proposed 
precept indicating it was vetoed because it was too high;  

 
 they must not issue a precept which is lower than the revised precept if the revised 

precept was raised following the panel’s initial report on the first proposed precept 
indicating it was vetoed because it was too low.  

 
 
 

The PCP may only veto the first proposed precept. Such a veto must be agreed 

by two-thirds of PCP members (the full membership rather than those present 

at a meeting). Where a veto occurs, the report to the PCC must include a 

statement to that effect. 

Page 13



 

 4 

 
2. Timetable for Greater Manchester Police Precept 

2020/21 
 
The nationally set timescales outlined in this report are the final dates by which the precept setting 
must take place, these do not lend themselves to coordination of precept setting at a Local 
Authority level. The police precept is required to be included in each Local Authority’s Council 
Tax setting report with the majority of Greater Manchester Council’s holding their budget / precept 
setting Council meetings towards the end of February to allow for the printing of Council tax bills 
in time for 1 April.  
 
Normally the Government would, by now, have given some indication as to the levels of grant 
funding that would be received next year and of the possible rules, if any, for the limiting of precept 
increases. However, this year, other than an indication that the Police pension grant will continue 
for next year, there have been no such announcements. 
 
Given the holding of the General Election on 12 December, there is a distinct possibility that there 
will be no indication of funding/precept levels until early January and, as such, the Panel may 
wish to arrange a further meeting in mid January to give initial consideration to any budget and 
precept proposal.  
 
For this purpose a timetable for the setting of the police precept in Greater Manchester is as 
follows and allows for the statutory time periods should the Police and Crime Panel wish to veto 
the initial precept presented to them.  
 

Report Date 

Precept setting process presented to the Police and Crime Panel 14th November 2019 

Draft precept report presented to the Police and Crime Panel  Mid January 

Final precept proposal report presented to the Police and Crime 
Panel 

28th January 2020 

Precept resolution signed by the Mayor w/c 10th February 2020 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

 5 

 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

 
 
Date:   14th November 2019 
 
Subject: Deputy Mayor Decision Notices since from March 2019 
 
Report of: Bev Hughes – Deputy Mayor for Police, Crime, Criminal Justice services and Fire 
 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to highlight decisions made by the Deputy Mayor in the period from 
23rd September 2019 to 31st October 2019. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Panel is requested to note the decisions made and whether any further information is 
requested in relation to decisions made. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 
 
Clare Monaghan 
Director – Police, Crime and Fire team 
Clare.monaghan@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Clare.monaghan@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk


2 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 Under Section 28(6) of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the Panel is 

obliged to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the Deputy Mayor 
in connection with the discharge of the police and crime functions and, where necessary 
make reports or recommendations to the Deputy Mayor with respect to the discharge of 
those functions. 

 
1.2 The Deputy Mayor is under a statutory obligation under the terms of the Specified 

Information Order to publish details of decisions of significant public interest. In more 
general terms under Section 13 of the 2011 Act, the Deputy Mayor is obliged to ensure that 
she provides the Panel with any information that it might reasonably require to allow it to 
carry out its functions. This would include the provision of information regarding decisions 
and actions, irrespective of whether they were to be considered to be of “significant public 
interest”.  

 
1.3 In this respect, the GMCA publishes decisions made. 
 
 
2.0 DECISIONS MADE SINCE 23rd SEPTEMBER 2019. 
 
2.1 Drawing on the information published on the GMCA website, a number of decisions have 

been made from 23rd September 2019.  
 
2.2 Decisions made are set out below: 
 

Date of decision Decision/ report title GMP/PCC 

11th April 2019 
(Sept 19 report ) 
 
3rd July 2019 

Community Security Trust – Anti-Semitic hate crime 
support. Funding of £14,058 awarded to support 
victims of Anti-Semitic hate crime. April 2019 to end 
Sept 2019. Extended to end March 2020 

PCC 

12th April 2019 
(Sept 2019 
report) 
 
3rd July 2019 

LGBT Foundation Hate Crime Support – funding of 
£14,790 awarded to LGBT Foundation to support 
victims of hate crime. April 2019 to end Sept 2019. 
Extended to end March 2020 

PCC 

3rd July 2019 GM and Trafford Rape Crisis – funding of £45,000 
awarded to GM and Trafford rape crisis to support 
victims of rape and sexual assault. April 2019 to 
March 2020 

PCC 

3rd July 2019 Village Angels – Funding of £85,000 awarded to LGBT 
Foundation to provide a proactive volunteer 
presence in the Village area to improve community 
safety. October 2019 to Sept 2020 

PCC 

Page 18



3 
 

Date of decision Decision/ report title GMP/PCC 

1st August 2019 Extension of the Inphase contract for a 6 month 
period (sept 19 – end of Feb 2020) to allow sufficient 
time to fully integrate the GMCA correspondence and 
casework system and move across to the single 
system. Cost of extension £4,000 

PCC 

30th September 
2019 

Home Office Allocation – Serious Violence. Spending 
plan for the Home Office funding agreed in relation to 
£8,170,000. GMP - £3,430,000, Devolved funding to 
community safety partnership - £ 3,100,000, Violence 
Reduction unit - £430,000, Project and interventions 
- £743,000, Data and intelligence - £272,200, 
Training/ campaigns and contingency - £194,800 

 

30th September 
2019 

Enhancement to Policing and Community safety 
survey report for districts – additional 1 off cost to 
provide additional data analysis for districts as part of 
online access – cost £850.00  

PCC 

30th September 
2019 

Trapped – Tackling criminal exploitation of children 
and vulnerable young people. Funding totalling 
£30,000 to be allocated to the trapped programme of 
work for 2019/20 to maintain awareness raising, 
Partner Campaign Pack resources, targeted weeks of 
action training and learning event 

PCC 

3rd October 2019 Flame Retardant Coveralls – approval of a 4 year 
contract for flame retardant coveralls to MWUK T/A 
Yaffy, with no option to extend. Approximate value 
over 4 years £ 560,000 

GMP 

4th October 2019 Crime Scene Consumables – approval to tender the 
contract using the West Mercia Police framework. 
Estimated contract value £250,00 per annum 

GMP 

18th October 2019 Hate Crime Awareness Investment – approval for 
funding to raise awareness of hate crime across 
Greater Manchester – made up of £50,000 for a 
central communications campaign in support of hate 
crime awareness week in February 2020 and a grant 
of up to £5,500 to each GM Community Safety Team 
to support local activity.  

PCC 

18th October 2019 Expansion of the GM Safe Drive Stay Alive Initiative – 
approval of £15,000 to support six additional 
performances in march 2020 aimed at raising 
awareness of road safety to young drivers. The 
scheme is supported by the Safer Roads GM 
Partnership. 

PCC 

Page 19



4 
 

Date of decision Decision/ report title GMP/PCC 

31st October 2019 Local Children’s and Adult’s Safeguarding Boards, to 
receive a financial contribution to cover the period 
October 2019 to end March 2020. This to be reviewed 
following the review of GM structures in light of 
Statutory Government guidance. Total value of 
£153,760 

PCC 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS. 
 
3.1 Appear at the front of the report 
 

Page 20



                   
 
 
Report to:  Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel 
 
Report of:  Carolyn Wilkins, Lead Chief Executive GM Police and Crime  
 
Subject: Greater Manchester Police and Crime Plan – Forward Look 2018/20 
 
Date of Meeting:  14 November, 2019 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report sets out a possible annual Forward Plan to inform the business of 

the Greater Manchester Police and Crime Panel (GMPCP). It allows for the 
Panel to meet its statutory functions. It assumes that much of the detailed work 
to support the Police and Crime Panel will be undertaken by the Police and 
Crime Steering Group. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 Panel members are invited to note, comment upon and suggest any changes 

they wish to make on the proposed Forward Plan for the Panel, which is 
attached to this report.  

 
2.2 If agreed, the Plan will result in a minimum of three meetings of the Panel per 

year - normally in January, June and October. Ad hoc meetings may be 
required to allow consideration of any proposed senior appointments by the 
Greater Manchester Mayor to enable detailed consideration of precept, budget 
reports or the development of a GM Police and Crime Plan.     

 
3. FORWARD PLAN: RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
3.1 The Panel Arrangements require the Panel to set its own programme, having 

regard to:  
 

(a) the requirement to properly undertake the functions and responsibilities 
of the GMPCP as set out in the Police Reform Act and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 (‘the Police Reform Act’); 

 
(b) the Greater Manchester Police and Crime priorities defined by the 

Greater Manchester Mayor (GMM) and Greater Manchester Deputy 
Mayor for Policing and Crime(GMDMP&C). and 

 
(c) the views of members and advisers as to the appropriate work to be 

undertaken. 
 
3.2 The Police Reform Act (as modified by the Greater Manchester Combined 

Authority (Transfer of Police and Crime Commissioner Functions to the Mayor) 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



Order 2017) is quite specific about the functions and responsibilities of the 
Police and Crime Panel: 

 

 scrutiny of the GMM / GMDMP&C Police and Crime Plan 

 scrutiny of the GMM/GMDMP&C Annual Report 

 review of the GMM/GMDMP&C proposed senior appointments  

 scrutiny, including the right to veto, of the GMM precept proposals 

 review, including the right to veto, the GMM proposed appointment of the 
Chief Constable or Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime. 

 review or scrutinise of decisions made or other actions taken by the GMM, 
the GMDMP&C and any other person who exercises any function of the 
Mayor pursuant to arrangements made under section 18 of the Police 
Reform Act insofar as the GMPCP is not otherwise required to do so by 
the Police Reform Act.  

 
3.3 The timings for consideration of the precept and any confirmation hearings are 

set out in regulations, and in the Panel’s Rules of Procedure.  These are 
reflected as necessary in the draft Forward Plan.   

 
3.4 The Panel is also responsible for ensuring the initial handing and informal 

resolution of complaints against the GMM/GMDMP&C where it relates to Police 
and Crime matters.  Initial handling and informal resolution of complaints has 
been delegated by the Panel to the lead Chief Executive. The regulations to 
follow in relation to complaints are set out in the Panels complaint procedures. 
The Forward Plan allows for an annual complaints monitoring report to the 
Panel. 

 
3.5 Confirmation hearings for any senior appointments will be factored into the 

Forward Plan as required. It may be that ad hoc meetings are required to 
consider such appointments. The Rules of Procedure delegate the calling of an 
ad- hoc meeting to the Chair.   

 
3.6 The Panel is also able to review or scrutinise the decisions or actions of the 

GMM/GMDMP&C in connection with the discharge of his/her functions. In this 
context, it is suggested that the Panel consider a mid-year and end-year 
performance report from the GMM/GMDMP&C. The latter would be considered 
alongside the GMM/ GMDMP&C Annual Report. It is also suggested that the 
lead Chief Executive in liaison with the Chair, and the GMM/GMDMP&C agree 
those issues that should come to the Panel. Issues brought to the Panel would 
satisfy two tests: have potentially significant affects on communities living within 
Greater Manchester, or any matter likely to impact on services or budgets of 
local authorities.   
 

3.7 The Forward Plan assumes the majority of issues will be considered by the 
Police and Crime Steering Group. This might include iterative development of 
the Police and Crime Plan, the development of delivery plans and projects to 
support the Plan. A parallel and more detailed Forward Plan is being developed 
for the Police and Crime Steering Group taking into account wider community 
safety issues. 

 

Page 22



 
 
 
4 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (available on request) 

 Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
 

5 CONTACT OFFICER  
Jeanette Staley, Head of Community Safety, Salford City Council / GM Police 
and Crime Policy & Strategy Support Officer email: 
Jeanette.staley@salford.gov.uk tel: 0161 793 2616 

Page 23

mailto:Jeanette.staley@salford.gov.uk


FORWARD PLAN FOR GM POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
2019/20 

 
 

ANTICIPATED 
DATE  
 

KEY DECISION / ITEM OF BUSINESS / CONTACT OFFICER / 
CONSULTATION DETAILS 

CONTACT OFFICER 

 
 2 July 2019 
 

 
GM Police and Crime Panel Annual Appointments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GM Police and Crime Panel -  Complaints Procedure 
 
 
 
 
GM Manchester Police and Crime Panel Arrangements  
 
 
 
 
Chief Constable Contract Extension  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire/ 
Jeanette Staley, GM 
Police & Crime Lead 
Officer 
 
Liz Treacy, GMCA 
Solicitor and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Liz Treacy, GMCA 
Solicitor and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Report of Beverley 
Hughes, Greater 
Manchester Deputy 
Mayor for Policing 
and Crime 
 
 
 

P
age 24



GM Police and Crime Panel -  Rules of Procedure 
 
 
 
 
Standing Together annual Report – May 2017 – March 2019   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Annual Complaints Record against GMM/GMDMP&C 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Liz Treacy, GMCA 
Solicitor and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
Report of Beverley 
Hughes, Greater 
Manchester Deputy 
Mayor for Policing 
and Crime 
 
 
Jeanette Staley, GM 
Police & Crime Lead 
Officer/Steve 
Annette, GM 
Governance  Scrutiny 
Officer  
 
 
 

 
    24  
    

September           
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appointment of Vice Chair of the GM Police and Crime Panel 2019/20 – Change 
to Rules of Procedure         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GM Police and Crime 2018/19 Precept – Update on Spend    
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 

 
Jeanette Staley, GM 
Police & Crime Lead 
Officer/Steve 
Annette, GM 
Governance  Scrutiny 
Officer / Melinda 
Edwards, GM Legal 
Officer 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 

P
age 25



Decisions and Actions taken by the Deputy Mayor 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
APCC Meetings/Feedback  
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
Violent Crime Funding Plan  
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
Standing Together Plan Focus - Theme 1      
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
 
Standing Together - Outcomes Framework    
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
GM Police and Crime Plan Forward Look 2019/20 - Standing Item 
 
Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief 
Executive for Police and Crime 
 

 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire/ 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire/  
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Assistant Director of 
Police & Crime, 
Criminal Justice & 
Fire 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Assistant Director of 
Police & Crime, 
Criminal Justice & 
Fire 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Assistant Director of 
Police & Crime, 
Criminal Justice & 
Fire 
 
Steve Annette, GM 
Governance & 
Scrutiny Officer 
 

P
age 26



 
   14 November    
   2019 
 
 
 

 
Police Precept Setting Process 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy mayor for Police and  
Crime   
 
 
 
Performance Outcomes Framework  
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy mayor for Police and  
Crime   
 
 
Standing Together Plan Focus – Theme2  
   
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy mayor for Police and  
Crime   
 
 
 
Decisions and Actions taken by the Deputy Mayor 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
 
 
GM Police and Crime Plan Forward Look 2018/19 - Standing Item 
 
Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief 
Executive for Police and Crime 
 

 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 
Steve Annette, GM 
Governance & 
Scrutiny Officer 

P
age 27



 
       28 January   

2020 

 
Consideration of the Mayor’s 2019/20- precept proposals  
Consideration of the Mayors Revenue and Capital Budget proposals 
Consideration of the Mayors proposed Community Safety Grants 
 
Report of Andy Burnham / Beverley Hughes – GM Mayor / Deputy Mayor for 
Policing and Crime 
 
 
Standing Together Plan Focus – Theme 3   
  
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Police and  
Crime   
 
 
 
 
 
 
Decisions and Actions taken by the Deputy Mayor 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
Gender Based Violence 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
GM Police and Crime Panel Forward Look 2018/19 - Standing Item 
 
Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief Executive 
for Police and Crime  

 
Director of Finance 
(Police & Crime) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire/ 
Jeanette Staley, GM 
Police & Crime Lead 
Officer 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 
 
Laura Mercer, GMCA 
Principal (Victims and 

Vulnerability)            

GMCA            

Steve Annette, GM 
Governance & 
Scrutiny Officer 
 

P
age 28



 
Civil Contingencies and Resilience Unit – Annual Report  
 
Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief Executive 
for Police and Crime  
 
 
Eighth Annual Conference for Chairs, Members and Officers of Police (Fire) and 
Crime Panels -       
 

 
 
Kathy Oldham 
Chief Resilience 
Officer, GMCA 
 
 
Jeanette Staley, GM 
Police & Crime Lead 
Officer 
 

 
     24  March 2020   

 
GM Police and Crime Panel Forward Look 2018/19 - Standing Item 
 
Report of Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive Oldham Council & Lead Chief Executive 
for Police and Crime  
 
 
Decisions and Actions taken by the Deputy Mayor 
 
Report of Beverley Hughes, Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor for Policing and 
Crime 
 
 
 

 
Steve Annette, GM 
Governance & 
Scrutiny Officer 
 
 
Clare Monaghan,  
Director of Police & 
Crime, Criminal 
Justice & Fire 
 
 

 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
	4 MINUTES
	6 POLICE PRECEPT SETTING PROCESS
	8 DECISIONS AND ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE DEPUTY MAYOR
	9 GM POLICE AND CRIME PLAN - FORWARD LOOK 2019/20

